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Board of Directors

The three stylised people signify that through our Members, their

members, and the community working together co-operatively, we all grow.

Our
Vision

Our
Values

CO-OP MONEY NZ DIRECTORY

Registered Office:
Level 3. 25 Teed Street
Newrnarket, Auckland, 1023

Postal Address:

PO Box 9582, Newmarket
Auckland 1149

New Zedlond

Contact Us:
E: info@cooprmoneynz.orgnz
P- 464 9520 045!

Solicitors: Bell Gully

External Auditors:

PricewaterhouselCoopers

Internal Auditors: Deloilte

Bankers:

VVE: i€ Institutional Bank

Executive Team:

Henry Lynch
Chief Executive Officer

Dovid Smart

Chief Financial Officer

Jonathan Lee

Chief Operating Officer
eane Johns

Chief information Officer

Leadership Team:

Clint Wharfe
Sales & Service Centre Manager

Glen Hill

Accounting Manager
Kelvin Ho
Development Manager

Kelvin Nolan
Claims and Underwriting Manager

s Plurnpton

Programme Manager

Herbert WuUlff

Centradl Banking Manager
Rene Breitenny
Manager Banking Services
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Manager, Products
Sathya Ashok
Communications Manager

> Friis

Manager, Risk & Compliance



ratively owned ¢ it unions

and mutual b >ties play an
important role in h*c New Zealand

finanicicl service

market and nave

s
ong and proud history

of serving

communities acr

the country

-op Money NZ came into e
in 961 as the New Zealand Credit
Union League. In 1989 we became the
New Ze
Unions. In 2014, we changed our

d Association of Credit

name to Co-op Money NZ to bette
reflect the n

and how the

ers

ature of our Memb

help their members
manage their money. We are owned
by 13 Member credit unions and
represent in total 14 credit unions and
4 mutual building societies, with total
ssetsof SIS b

Co-op Money NZ re

resents cr

unions and mutual building societies

‘mum and dad’ New Zedlanders. With

a focus on members, not shareholde

profits, customer satisfaction levels

forour Members are among the

h IO‘"’ st in the m

. They \-\w:.zr’k. hard

rve communities

ughout

ew Zealand, both in main centres

and in small towns

Credit unions and mutual builc siigls}
encth
bu
i

ity to ensure they are

societies are building the
and visibl

considered as the first option in the
communities they serve. Ongoing

reviews of our qQove

nance, pricing,
o

service and produ itinue to

> W
ensure we offer ocur Me rs what
they need to satisfy their current and

future members. We will continue to

e strength of credit unions

) societies

e working together to harness

‘mum & dad’
members

financial
transactorin

Co-op Money NZ is committed to

ding to International
Credit Union Operating Princ
founded on

operating ac

the philosophy of

cooperation and democracy. Co-op

Money NZ is @ member of the World
dit Unions (WOCCU),

ich ensures w

Council of C

> have up-to-date

information and cooperation fr

credit union organisations worldwide
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Group profit for year

$948,357

Total annual
dividend paid

S1.3m.

Co-op Insurance NZ

We provide dedicated advisory and
operational support services, such

as ri

| &)

k and compliance, learning and

0

Y

¢

levelopment U‘D'\mﬂg programmes,
o[V

6]

nd public relations.

In addition to providing representation
and support to our Members, Co-op

)

Money NZ is also an independent

provider of gudlity products &

services to financial institutions

Co-op Money NZ delivers a full
spectrum of core banking and
insurance products and services,
tallored to meet the needs of

our Members and other financial
institutions. Cur collaborative approach
enables our Members and custormers
to gchieve economies of scale and
provide the kind of cperational
efficiencies reauired to be successful in
a highly competitive morket

In addition to this, Co-op Money NZ
also provides the following services:

- A range of compliance services
to help financial services

.

organisations to understand

and comply with existing

manner

Central Banking — a facility that

enables our Members
frorn a centralised Treasury
operation to optimise their
investment return and business
liquidity

A range of training and
development opportunities for
directors. managers and front
line staff, including enline and
face to face. This includes three
NZQA recognised certificate
courses developed in association
with The Skills Orgaonisation.
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Co-op Money NZ provides Member organisations and
other financial services institutions with a ronge of
financial services, banking and insurance products.

/ o provide

customers with the

well equipped to

itutions with their
s and IT ch

we have:

Established relationships with

Industry reguiators

gteral agre

by PwC and

security audited annually

ssMment.cem

rity and compliance

vices and entry

S provide

secure disaster recovery systems

FACTS Computer Bureau | 24/7

real time

» bureau and core banking

platform with o full suite

ire

vings and loans products.

Func

nality includes card processing,

internet, telephone and text banking,

giving even small

4

cransactional bank

robust

PO T
RPAym
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ATM Machines and Card Services |

servicing, maintenan

Accesscash | 1

over 100 ATMs.

AccessDebit MasterCard® |
a Debit MasterCard® card that can
n-line, at ATM and EFTP

ninals throughout New Zealgnd

e us

and at millions of locations overseas,

wherever MasterCard™ is
Accesscard | which can be used

at all ATM and EFTPOS terminals
throughout New Zealand and

e MAESTRO logo is

overseaqs wnere

displayed

AccesssMobile | o state-of-the-
art mobile banking app that can
be ‘skinned’ to individual branding

requirements for organisations

Infrastructure Solutions | together
with a number of key partners, our
team of highly skilled IT professionals
can provide total lecding-ecge
technology solutions and services to
effectively become the in-house 'IT

department’ for small organisdtions




New Tongan and Samoan
versions of our brochures.

Co-op Insurance NZ, provides all New Zealanders with
a range of car, redundancy/bankruptcy and accidental
death insurance products designed for the needs of

Kiwis.

We also provide credit unien
members with great value loan
repayment insurance ond funeral
plan insurance products, and provide
house and contents insurance
through our partner Vero.

Being owned by Co-op Money NZ
means we are ultimately owned by
the credit unions of New Zedland.
That's why everything we do has
the co-operative philosophy in mind:
we really want to do the best for
our customers and cur focus is not
on making big prefits for offshore
shareholders.

We are constantly reviewing our
products and listening to Member
feedback to ensure we are providing
gudlity, market-leading insurance
policies that reflect the needs of
customers, and this year introduced
three new products:

+ Bundled discount option for
Comprehensive Motor Vehicle
Insurance with Home and
Contents Insurance ihrough our
partner Vero Insurance New

ealand.

« BackStop Redundancy and
Bankruptcy Insurance

+ Accidental Death Insurance

Recognising the significance of the
Pasifika community to many of our
Member credit unions, this year we
introduced Samoan and Tongan
lenguage versions of our insurance
product brochures to help improve
the understanding and importance of
insurance to a wider customer base

licensed by the Reser

risurance (Prudent




ACU

Whangarei

NZCU Steelsands
Marsden Paoint
Westforce Credit Union
Whangarei

ACU

Clendon

Glen Innes

Marigere

Otara

Papakura

Papatoetoe

Fisher & Paykel Credit Union
Appliances, East Tamaki
Healthcare, East Tamaki
NZCU Auckland
Auckland Airport
Penrose

Manukau City

Mt Wellington

NZCU Employees
Penrose

NZCU Steelsands
Auckland City
Glenbrook

Wailsku

Westforce Credit Union
Avondale

Onehunga

Papakura

Pukekohe

ACU

Harmilton

Hamilton-Te Kohao Health
First Credit Union
Harnilton Chty
Ngaruawohia

Te Aroha

Te Kauwhata

Thames

Caxton Employees Credit
Union
Kawerau

Credit Union Central
Edgecumbe
Kawerau

Kopeopeo
Murupara
Rotorua
Tanegtua

Te Puke

First Credit Union
Bethiehem
Greerton
Kowerau

Mt. Maunganui
Rotorug B
Tauranga Hespital
Taupo

Tekerea

Whakatane

NZCU Baywide
New Plymouth

Credit Union Central
Gisborne

NZCU Baywide
Gisborne

Heretaunga Building Society
Hastings

Napier Building Society
Napler

NZCU Baywide
Dannevirke

Hastings

Hastings Hospital
Napier

Taradale

Waipukurau

Wairog

ACU

Whanganui

NZCU Baywide
Palmerston North
Palmerston North Hospital
Wanganuli

ACU

Poriruc

First Credit Union
Jehnsonville

New Zealand Police &
Families Credit Union
Wedllington

NZCU Baywide

Lower Hutt

Masterton

Paorirua

YWainuarnata

NZ Fire Fighter's Credit
Union

Petone

Wairarapa Building Society
Masterton

Nelson Building Society
Nelson

Maotueka

Richrnord

Tatkakao

NZCU South

Nelson

Richrnond

Nelson Port

Nelson Building Society
Greymouth

NZCU South
Greymouth

Nelson Building Society
Ashburton

NZCU South

Hornky

Sydenham

Tirnaru

NZCU South
Dunedin
Qamart

Alliance Group Credit Union
Invercargil

NZCU South

Invercargil

Gore




verall, Co-op Money NZ and its subsidiary companies

hove again performed very well, with a group profit for

the year to 30 June 2015 of $S1.811,000 compared to the

prior year profit of $1,508,000. Co-op Money NZ has an
ongoing strategic godl to maintain capital adequacy, while returning

value to cur Members. The final year's result to 30 June 2015 is once

again a very good result. Total dividends paid during the year were
5848357, and the dividend rate was 6.92%. Capital adequacy as at
30 June 2015 was 12.55%, compared to the policy minimum of 10%,

and a target range of 11.5% to 14%.

The team at Co-op Money NZ has

a mandate to provide Members

with quality products and services

at the best possible pricing, and are
regularly reviewing internal pricing
structures and value provided by
external business partners to be able
to deliver on that promise.

| would like tc commend Henry and
his team on their focus to continually
provide value to Members, hand

in hand with a number of new
products, service and process

enhgncemeants

AccessMobile, our market-leading
mobile banking product, was one

such product enhancement, launched
in May 2015. Since its inception,

over 18,500 of your members have
embraced the t@chnologv, and we had
envisdged a significant drop-off in the
use of the ‘old-school’ text banking

as a result. Surprisingly, demand for
the text-banking option has remained
relatively consistent and Co-op Money
NZ has managed to negotiate ©
reduced pricing structure which will
save Members approximately 8% per
transaction going forward

Regular business partner reviews are
undertaken by Co-op Money NZ to

ensure your pricing is as competitive as

possible. As with all supply contracts,

the more the volume, the bigger the
discount so our collective purchasing
power is only as strong as our support
for Co-op Money NZ's and Co-op

Insurance NZ's products and services

Overdll, Co-op Insurance NZ has

23 Bl payable compared to
S1,381,288 for the year ended 30
June 2014. Insurance commission for
this year was $1,.876,000, up frem
$1,766,000 for the year ended 30
June 2014,

The team at Co-cp Insuranice NZ are
continually looking at ways to improve
efficiency and improve profitability for
the company overall. In terms of the
Carminder preduct, enhancements
are being progressively made,
including the introduction of paperless
direct debits, automated underwriting
wherever possible (due for release

at the end of August 2015) and @
new multi-year policy option, being
launched at the incugural 2015
Insurance Champion's Summit.

These improvements are designed

to enhance the member experience,



improve back office efficiency and
ultimately lead to grecter scles

It is pleasing to repert an overall
growth rate of 5.9% in Gross Written
Premium for the company. This was
driven by growth in Funeral Plan
premium of 33.8% and in Motor
Vehicle pernium of 8.4%.

At the time of writing last year's
Annual Report, we were awaiting

to hear the final outcome of the
Non-Bank Deposit Taker's (NBDT)
Prudential Supervision regime review
undertaken by the Reserve Bank of
New Zealand (RBNZ) - and a yeor
later, at the time of writing this,

we are still awaiting the Minister of
Finance's report on the review

Whilst changing legislation at times can

seem painfully slow, the persistence

wn by the Co-op Money NZ team
in terms of lobbying on our behalf has

continued to pay off in the past year,

with the announcement in December
2014 that the RBNZ will raise the
gualifying thresheld for the exemption
from the credit roting reguirermnent for
NBDTs from $20m to $40m, providing
a capital ratio of 12%.is maintained.
This is d positive outcome for those
Members who have been sitting Just
below that threshold and have been
hesitant to grow their erganisations’
asset base with the threat of vet
another additional compliance cost on

the horizon

Ancther cchieverment in the past
year was the announcement that the
disclosure reguirements under the
Financial Market Conducts Act (FMC)
would be simplified for NBDTs. | know
for our Members that the production
of a prospectus every year given the
simple nature of savings products
has been an ongeing compliance
headache, The transition from a
complex prospectus to a much
simpler Product Disclosure Statement
is currently being worked on following
intensive lobbying by the Co-op
Money NZ team.

Sharing learmings from such experiences
with new legislation is an excellent
example of the value that Membership
of Co-op Money NZ provides — and the
NBDT licensing process undertaken by all
Co-op Money NZs Mernbers in the past
year has been a prime demenstration
of the power of our collective knowledge
bose NZCU Steelsands was the early
cidopter for this regulatory project and
through the support and guidance of
the Co-op Money NZ Risk & Compliance
team, was the first NBOT in New
Zealond to be issued with a licence, and
| know many of us are very grateful for
their shared learnings.

It was encouraging to see that all 18
Co-op Maney NZ Members gained
their licenses ahead of the deadline,
| understand it took a lot of your
time and resource to complete the
licensing process. and | commend

3l of you for this achievement. |

also have no deubt that the

relationship that exists betwee
op Money NZ and the RBNZ helped

support Members through what was
a relatively complex new requirement

for our sector to undertake.

The biggest chonges to our governing
legisiation in recent years will be the
amendments to the Friendly Societies
& Credit Unions Act 18982 announced in
July 2014 by the Minister of Commmerce
and Consumer Affairs. These long
awaited changes, allowing credit unions
legal status’ and the ability to lend to
small businesses owned by members,
which could potentially be enacted by
the end of 2015.

| would like to thank the Co-op

Money NZ executive teom for the
considerdble work being undertaken

in conjunction with the Ministry of
Business, Innovation and Employement
and the Parliamentary Counsel Office
in drafting these changes that will

be included as part of the upceming
omnibus Regulatory Systems Bill

The fundamental philosophy that
started the whole co-operative

movernent several hundred years
agoe is being recognised this year as
the theme for the 2015 Internaticnal
Credit Union (ICU) Day on Thursday 15
October

'People Helping People’ is a phrase we
have no doubt all used over the years
when describing what our organisations
are all cbout, so | really encourage you
to embrace this yeor's ICU day theme

and use it gs @ great opportunity to
get out in your local communities 1o
promote the real meaning of being a

financicl co-operdative.

As the econormy, technology and the
world changes, we need to change
too. Whilst our core fundamental
reason for being will always be
‘pecple helping people’, | think we all
recognise that without change, there
can't be growth. Our Septermber 2015

Conference theme ‘Changing to Grow'

exploras this, and we dre disc in the
process of reviewing the Governance
structure for Co-op Money NZ as part
of our recognition of the significant
change in recent years of our
collective Membersnip.

One thing that hasn't changed

is the dedication, hard work and
professionalism shown by the teams at
Co-op Money NZ and Co-op Insurance
NZ. We are truly fortunate to have
such arstrong and supportive team
working behind the scenes ta help us
drive our organisations forward. Thank
you for everything you do for us.

Of course, | would also like to thank
my fellow Directors for their cngoing
support, hard work and dedication to
the job aver the past year. And | would
like to personally like to thank you, our
Members, for continuing o live the
Peogle Helping People philosophy for
your members every day.

L -‘1
SIMON SCOTT

Chairman of the Board



ovember 2014 saw the

orqanisation for some time: the co

of our I_r’c::jil'w_c; entiti

focused, co-operative fo

This transition frem the New Zea

to Co-op Money NZ wasn't without its challenges—a very public
objection filed by The Co-operative Bank to the use of our new
trading name delayed the launch of our rebrand until the outcome of

ion was

a High Court decis

eleased. We knew our case was extremely
sound before undertaking our defence, and the judge’s decision

r@sc-uﬁdﬂaav supported our rlo_m as a co-operdtive to use the

= | = =
aescript

ive term ‘Co-op' in cur name. This was an important win for

all New Zedland co-operative crganisations in recognising our right to

promote our collective history and common philosophy in this way.

D

We have had very positive feedback on our new branding and | am
sure you will agree its modern, people-friendly feel is a much better

reflection of who we are and what we do today.
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motor vehicle insurance policy entirely
online. Additional enhancermnents
coming up include a multi-year policy
option for motor venicle insurance,
and improved automated underwriting
within the online system to reduce the
need for manual review of applicant

information.

The introduction last year of two
NZQA certified certificates has

18 stoff members throughout the
country completing the programme
and attaining a notionally recognised
qualification. This fantastic
achievernent was recognised at'a
groduation ceremony at the March
2015 Farum—-complete with formal
graduction gowns!

A third NZQA certificate. a National
Certificote in Business (Level 3),

has also now been rolled out, and
response to this hos olso bheen
extremely positive, with 11 stoff
already enrolled. Industry training
body, The Skills Organisation, with
whom we have partnered to deliver
this Co-op Learning strategy. is very
impressed with the way our Members
have embraced this programme, and
we know participating erganisations
will continue to see long term benefits
baoth in terms of staff performance,
and retention.

We are continually locking at new
ways to fadilitate training within your
organisations and the introduction
of our excellent 'Leadership Series’
of videos last year will continue to
be expanded on. Ancther project
we have been working on is an AML
refresher training programme to be
offered in the rather unusual formaot
of an interdctive on-line game.

Stoff wil be given a scenario and
become the "AML Investigator' in a
game that then demonstrates their
understanding of the AML legislation
requirements. This 'gamification’
approach has been proven to be an
extremely effective learning tool and
we dre sure it will make your staf

more positive about undertaking the
required AML refresher training

=

o

Learning

Events, such as our Forums, Surmmits
and Annual Conference, continue to
enaoble a positive sharing of ideas and
lecrning opportunities for Members
as well as an oppertunity to further
build relationships and alliances with
key political and regulatory decision
Mmakers.

ne of the key events on our
caleridar last yeor was the ‘Pre-
Election Workshop and Political
Panel held in the lead-up to the 2014
election. Well supported by both
Members and our business partners,
the evening featured politicians from
all the major parties presenting their
view cn “How Government Should
Encourage the Local Co-op and
Community Cwned Banking Sector
to Have @ Stronger Role in the New
Zealand Society and The Ecenomy”.
We were also fertunate to have
the new Minister of Commerce
and Consumer Affairs, Hen Paul
Goldsmith, cpen our Forum where
he discussed the changes beaing
made to the Friendly Societies and
Credit Unionis Act 1982 as part of the
upcoming Government omnibus bil

We have also hosted two separate
summits for our building seciety
Members this past year, ds we
recognise they have a number of
unigue challenges and needs. | would

like to thank all of the chairs, directors,

managers and Co-cp Money NZ and
Co-op Insurance NZ staff who take

time cut of their precious weekends
to attend these events. Not only are

they a great way to pick up new ideas,

but they are alse a very valuable
networking eppertunity for both
Members and our staff.

onal focus
The way Co-op Mcney NZ is
structured and our relationship with
Members is somewhat unigue in
the credit union and co-operative

financial services industry worldwide.
Qur cbility to be both an industry
associgtion advocating for our
Members, and the primary product
and services provider means we
garner a lot of interest from aoverseas
organisations looking at how they can
improve the performance of their
respective co-operative sectors

In the past 12 moriths, we have hosted
delegations from the San Francisco
Federal Credit Union, the Vietharmese
Government's Co-operative Planning
Division and representatives from the
Co-operative Organisation of Paronc
State (OCEPAR) and Co-operative
Learning System (SESCOOP) of Brazil
They have all been very impressed
with both Co-op Money NZ's operation
and that of the Member credit unions
who have presented to the groups
during their visits - thank you to

those Members for their time and
professionalism in supporting cur
international interactions.

As we embark on a new financial
year, | am excited about the positive
changes we are likely to see in

the coming months as the result

of many years' lobbying come to
fruition through the Government

Bill amending the Friendly Societies
and Credit Unions Act 1S82. |

would like to express my genuine
thanks to every Co-op Money NZ

and Co-op Insurance NZ staff and
board memiber for their on-going
commitrment and dedication in
serving our Memibers, and to our
Mermbers for their continued support
and callaboration. The past 12 manths
have been an exciting period of
change for us all. and the coming year
will no doubt be filled with many more
new choilenges and opportunities.

| look forward to working with you ail
to achieve even greater success for
our sector, and thank you for your
continued support.

HENRY LYNCH

Chief Executive







Board & Governance

Co-op Money NZ has adopted the Corporate Governance in
New Zealand - Principles and Guidelines publication endorsed
by the Financial Markets Authority to review and report on our
governance practices. Details of the directors are set out on

page 67 of this report.

At the 2014 AGM Peter Taylor and
Bruce Bleakley were elected to the
board. Following the election results,
Simen Scott was re-elected as Chair
and Claire Matthews was elected

as Deputy Chair. Graham Clouston
was re-elected and Chris Andersen
and Bruce Bledkley were elected as
Trustees.

Rob Nichells was re-elected Chair

of the Audit & Risk Cormnmittee

and Graham Clouston and Claire
Matthews were re-elected as Audit &
Risk Committee members.

In December 2014, Chris Andersen
resigned as a Director due to work
commitrments. His position remained
vacant for the balance of the financial
year.

In August 2015, Cloire Matthews
replaced Simon Scott as Chair of
Cec-op Money NZ, and Peter Taylor
became Deputy Chair.

1. Ensuring solid
foundations for
management and
oversight

Cao-op Money NZ has procedures
designed to:

« Enable the Board to provide
strategic guidance and effective
oversight of management

Clarify the respective roles

and responsibilities of Board
members and senior executives
in‘order to facilitote Board and
management accountability to
both Co-op Money NZ and its
Member credit unions

« Ensure the balance of authority
so that no single individual has
unfettered powers.

The Board has an obligation to
protect and enhance the value

of Co-op Money NZ's assets and

act in its interests. It exercises this
obligation through the approval of
appropriate organisational strategy
and processes, with particular regard
to investment portfolio composition
and return expectations.

Co-op Money NZ achieves Board and
management accountakility through
written terms of reference (policies),
and a formal delegation of authority
to the Chief Executive. The Chief
Executive is charged with the day-to-
day leadership and management of
Co-op Money NZ

The Board appointed Rob Nicholls as
Independent Director in Novemnber
2008.

2. Structuring the board to
add value

.Directors beleve that for the Board

to be effective it needs to fadiitate
the efficient discharge of the duties
imposed by law and to add value to
Co-op Money NZ To achieve this, the

Board is organised in such a way that it:

+ Obtains a proper understanding

of, and competence to deal with,

the current and emerging issues
of the business

- Can effectively review and
challenge the performance
of management and exercise
independent judgment.

Board composition

Co-cp Money NZ's constitution (its
Rules) provides for @ maximum of
seven directors one of whom may

be appointed by the Board as an
Independent Director for one or maore
fixed terms not exceeding three
years each.

Committees of the Board

The only current committees of

the board are the Audit and Risk
Committee and Directer Nomination
Committee. From time to time the
Board may create ad hoc committees
to examine specific issues on its behalf

Board process

Although the majerity of directors
are elected by Member credit

unions to bring special expertise or
perspectives to Board deliberations,
decisions of the Board are made as
a whole after taking each perspective
into gccount and in the best interests
of Co-cp Money NZ

The Directors receive comprehensive
inforrmation on Co-op Money NZ's
operations before each meeting

and have unrestricted access to any
other information or records. Senior
management is available and attend
relevant sections of Board meetings
to address queries and to assist in
developing the Board's understanding
of the issues facing Co-op Money NZ
and the performance of the business.

Director participation remains very
high with all Directors being present at
the mgjority of meetings. In addition
to regular Board meetings an annual
strategic planning process occurs,

The Strategic Plan for 1 Jonuary
2015 to 31 December 2016 has
been approved by Members and
Management report regularly to
Members on progress toward
achievement of the KPls embedded
in the plan.




ersee and

Code
y on dealing

appointment

v with conflicts and/or

the Baard: o i sy NZ @] e external auditors

ors

i with the Al
in place a structure of review and with the

authorisation designed to ensure subject to of

nduct practices that are

d into all en )
ymient. An Ethics

N be formed when

reguested by the Board, or a Member




Co-op Money NZ ‘s Secretary.

etary’s position hc

rhe fi‘”w{‘:;’“l:f,l:,,ﬂ statermen

iods, and any advice on a char

‘OI'I’"\T"\QE rer

understand its activities

by
i s ic
ar in nation
about Co-op Money NZ and any
al proposals

or Men

» participate in general

as and forun

oney NZ seeks to ensure that

necluding copies of
sand m

er communigue rele

18, report

annual report is available in

format from Co-op Money NZ

Bo rd is ultima

the oversigh

and setting Co-op Money

etite and t«

erances. The Audit
sts the Be

& Risk Committes as

harging its r




with regards the oversight of risk
management. The processes
involved reguire the maintenance of
a governance level Risk Managemenit
Framework and a Risk Register

that identifies key operational risks
facing the business and the status

of various initiotives employed

1o reduce them. A Risk Appetite
Dashboard is mcintained which shows
performance against Board approved
risk tolerances and highlights any
deviation from compliance with the
risk tolerance.

The Audit & Risk Committee is
responsible for designing an internal
audit programme addressing the
adequacy of internal controls
related to Co-op Money NZ 's credit,
liquidity, market, operational and
insurance risks. The committee is alsc
respensible for overseeing the oudit
programme designed to test the
adeguocy of internal controls related
to the Information Services delivered
by Co-op Money NZ including the
security of the FACTS system.

Directors and senior executives need
to be eguipped with the appropriote
knowledge and information to
discharge their responsibilities
effectively and be assured that
individual cnd collective performance
is regularly and fairly reviewed,

Board policy provides financial
resource for directors’ engoing
training and education with o fermal
appraisal process that includes

the chairman. On appointment
directors receive an education and
development allowance for their term.
This is specifically for professional
development, education and training
that will be of direct benefit to their
role as an Co-op Money NZ director.
As part of the annual review of its
governance processes, the Board
evaluates annually the perfermance
of the Chief Executive.

The evaluation is based on criteria
that include the performance of the
business and the accomplishment of
key strategic objectives and other non-

guantitative objectives established at
the beginning of each year.

In addition to these annual
performance reviews, the significant
policy issues, annual budget and
capital expenditure decisions of
management are put through a
formal Board review process,
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Remuneration philosophy

Co-op Money NZ's remuneration
strategy aims to ottract, retain and
motivate high calibre employees ot
all levels of the organisation, and so
drive performance and sustained
growth of Member value.

Uriderpinning this strategy is a
philosephy that all employees should
be appropriotely and competitively
rewarded. Total remuneration for
senior executives comprises a base
salary including the value of any
benefits ond may include ¢ short term
variable incentive in the formi of an
annual performance related payment
that requires achieverment of a mix of
financial and business targets

Non-executive directors’
remuneration

The fees paid to non-executive
directors for services in their capacity
as directors of Co-op Money NZ
during the year ended 30 June 2014
are as per the table on page B6.
Co-op Merney NZ's palicy is to align
directers’ remuneration to the market
measured against erganisations of
similar total asset value ond similar
annual revenues. Directors' fees are
normally reviewed annually and any
changes recommmended to Members
biennially. unless a significant market
movement has occurred. The last
review was in 2014 ond at thot AGM
the pool of directors’ fees payable
inany one year was increased to
$235,000.

In acknowledgment of the varying
workloads of the Board's Audit & Risk
Committee $6,312 from the director
fee pool is set aside for the Chair

of the Audit & Risk Cormnmittee and
additional meeting fee expenses

of $500 for a full day meeting or
S250 per teleconference or half day
meeting is paid to members of the
Audit & Risk Committee. These are
only pdid if the meetings occur ona
non-board meeting dote.

Travel expenses

The directors receive reimbursernent
for their travel, accommodation

and out of pocket expenses

whilst attending Board meetings.
Apart from travel and costs to
attend Co-op Money NZ's Annual
General Meeting, Conference and
forums, Co-op Maney NZ does not
pay for accormpanying partners.
When directors travel overseas

to international meetings and
conferences, their travel, registration
and accommedation expenses are
paid. Reasonable costs (including
travel, accommodation and
registration), are alse paid for a
partner of an official representative
of Co-op Money NZ attending such
international meetings

Directors’ development allowance
Directors are allocated $6,000
developrment allowance per term to
be used with Board approval to gain
personal development relevant te the
Director’s identified needs to enhance
their performance as a Co-op Money
NZ / Co-op Insurance NZ Director.

Directors’ insurance protection
Co-op Money NZ maintains
appropriate Personal Accident

cover as well as Directors' Liability
Insurance for its directors. The
Personal Accident cover for directors
provides for full proceeds being paid
to the insured director or their estate,
in the event of a daim being made.
The Directors’ Licbility Insurance
ensures that the directors will suffer
no financial loss as a result of actions
token by them as directors, provided
that they operate with due diligence
and within the law.

Chief Executive Officer's
remuneration

In gecordance with the revised
Co-op Money NZ Rules approved
at the September 2012 AGM, the
Chief Executive has ceased to be a
director, ex officio of Co-cp Money
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the financial statements of Co-op

ended 30 June 2015.

Money NZ for

For and on behalf of the board of directors

ﬂ/ %

Claire Matthews Peter Taylor

Chair Deputy Chair

21 August 2015 21 August 2015

We wish to report to the members of Co-op Meney NZ that we have

uirements of the Rules as follows:

attend

that PricewaterhouseCoopers

have comple

accordance with the Friendly Societies and Credit Unions

We have determined that a written Auditors’ Report is received, and

Members

S
e Auditors’ Report on behalf of tt

We have reviewed Co-op Money NZ minutes and financial statements for the

) June 2015 and determined that actions taken are in gccordance
N the t Unions Act 18982, Co-op Money NZ

icy and the Rules.

> Friendly Societies and Cred

Rob Nicholls
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee
2l August 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of New Zealand Association of Credit Unions

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of New Zealand Association of Credit Unions (the “Association”), trading
as Co-op Money NZ, on pages 23 to 65, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the
statements of comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows for the
year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements that include a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information for both the Association and the Group. The Group comprises the Association
and the entities it controlled at 30 June 2015 or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal controls as the
Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). These standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider the internal controls relevant to the Association’s and the Group’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s and the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

We are independent of the Association and the Group. Our firm carries out other services for the Group in the areas
of tax compliance, assurance related and corporate finance services. The provision of these other services has not
impaired our independence.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 23 to 65 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Association and Group as at 30 June 2015, and their financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards.

Restriction on Use of our Report

This report is made solely to the Association’s members, as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Association and the Association’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we
have formed.

e

MT%QQ‘
Chartered Account Auckland
21 August 2015

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 (9) 355 8000, F: +64 (9) 355 8001, www.pwc.com/nz







Statements of
Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Group Association
Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Interest Revenue 2 :
Interest Expense 3

NET INTEREST REVENUE
Banking Services Revenue
Insurance Premium Revenue

Other Revenue 4

TOTAL REVENUE NET OF INTEREST EXPENSE

Employee Costs

Insurance Claims & Commissions

Transaction Costs

Operating Expenses B
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

Dividend and Share of Profit/(Loss) of Joint Venture accounted for using the

equity method -
NET PROFIT BEFORE IMPAIRMENT

Impairment Credit 8
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation Expense =]

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

GROUP
Base Capital  Accumulated

Notes Losses Total

$000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July 2013 o 13885 (2587) 1108
Base Capital Notes Dividends Paid — < (B38) (638)
Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year = 1508 1508
Balance at 30 June 2014 13,695 1,717) 11,978
Balance at 1 July 2014 o 13695 (1.717) 1,878
Base Capital Notes Dividends Paid = = (848) (948)
Total Cormprehensive Income for the Year - 1811 181
Balance at 30 June 2015 13,695 (854) 12,841
ASSOCIATION

Base Capital  Accumulated

Notes Losses Total

$000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July 2013 - 13.695 (2.636) 11,088
Base Capital Notes Dividends Paid - = (638) (838)
Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year = 1408 1408
éulunce at 30 June 2014 13,695 (1,866) 11,829
Balance at 1 July 2014 i 13,695 (1.8686) 11.828
Base Capital Notes Dividends Paid : = (248) (348)
Tetal Comprehensive Income fer the Year s 1684 1,684
Balance at 30 June 2015 13,695 (1130) 12,565

This statement should be read In conjunction with the accompdnying notes.




Statements
of Financial Position

AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

Group Association
Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000

EQUITY (MEMBERS' FUNDS)

Base Capital Notes 10
Accumulated Losses 1
TOTAL EQUITY (MEMBERS' FUNDS)

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Eguivalents 12
Accounts Receivable 14
Expected Recoveries 7
Investrments 15 r
Loans Receivable 18
Prepayments 17
Inventory 18
Property, Plant and Equipment 19
Other Intangible Assets 20
Non-current Deposit

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Deposits Recelved 21
Accounts Payable 22
Unearned Premium Liability 23
Provisions 24
OQutstanding Claims Liability 7
TOTAL LIABILITIES g
NET ASSETS

This statemenit should be read in conjunction with the accormpanying notes.

These financial statements were authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 21st August Claire Matthews Peter Taylor
2015 and were signed for on its behalf Chair Deputy Chair




Statements
of Cash Flows

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Group Association
Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000

Cash Flows from operating activities

Cash was provided from

Membership Contributions Received
Insurance Premiums Received
Other Receipts from Customers
Loan Repayments from Customers
Investrment Interest Received

Motor Vehicle Claims Recoveries

Credit Union Foundation Grants and Donations

Cash was applied to

Payments to Suppliers and Employees 18280
Insurance Claims, Acguisition Costs and Rebates Paid : 6493
Interest Paid _ 3478

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 33 2972

Cash Flows from investing activities

Cash was provided from

Sale of Fixed Assets and Intangbles 1
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investment Securities 606,040
606,051

Cash was applied to

Purchase of Property, Plant and Eguipment
Purchase of Intangible Assets
Purchase of Investment Securities

Loan Repaid

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Flows from financing activities

Cash was provided from

Net increase in Deposits

Cash was opplied to

Base Capital Note Dividend Paid

Net Decrease in Deposits

NET CASH FLOWS TO FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash ond Cash Eguivalents at the Beginning of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 12

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

e




Statement
of Accounting Policies

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

1 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REPORTING ENTITY

Co-op Money NZ, the trading name of New Zealand
Association of Credit Unions {the “Associction”), is an
asseciation of Credit Unions registered under the Friendly
Societies and Credit Unions Act 1982. it comprises two
Trusts ("Divisions”): a Member Services Division and o
Business Services Division. The Divisions are established
pursuant to the Rules of Association, which were approved
by its members on 25 September 1994 and were first
registered with the Registrar of Friendly Societies and Credit
Unions on 10 Nevember 1994,

The Association's wholly owned subsidiary, Co-op Insurance
NZ, is an'issuer under the Financial Reporting Act 2013 by
the terms of the Insurance licence issued by the Reserve
Bank of New Zealand on 1 April 2013 under the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010. Co-op Insurance NZ is
registered under the Companies Act 1883 and is an FMC
reporting entity under Part 7 of the Financial Markets
Conduct Act 2013.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice ("NZ GAAP") and comply with the
Friendly Societies and Credit Unicns Act 1882.

The Association has adopted External Reporting Board
Standard Al Accounting Standards Framework (For-profit
Entities Update) (XRB Al). XRB Al establishes o for-profit tier
structure and outlines which suite of accounting standards
entities in different tiers must follow. The Association is a
Tier 1 entity. There was nc impact on the current or pricr
vear finandial statements,

The Group financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with NZ GAAP which complies with New Zealand
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
("NZ IFRS") and other applicable Financial Reporting
Standards for profit-orientated entities for the benefit of
their members. These financicl staterments also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Co-op Money NZ is domiciled in New Zedland and its
principal activities are to provide banking and other services
for credit unions.

GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis
of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain
financial instruments. Cost is based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for the assets.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner
which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and relicbility, thereby
ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions
or other events are reported.

iterns included in the financicl statements are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment

in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The
financial staterments are presented in New Zealand Dollars,
which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. All
values have been rounded off to the necrest 1000 dollars
(S) unless otherwise stated.

Fereign currency monetary assets and liabilities hove been
translated into the functional currency at the rate of foreign
exchange ruling as at balance sheet date. Transactions
denominated in a foreign currency are converted to New
Zedland dollars at the exchange rates in effect ot the date
of the transaction. Foreign exchange differences relating to
monetary items and gains and losses arising from foreign
exchange dealings by the Group are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Significant Judgements, Estimates and
Assumptions

In the opplication of NZ IFRS management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that management believe to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgments. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions dre reviewed
on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are



recognised in the pericd in which the estimate is revised

if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions made
by management in the preparation of these financial
staternents are outlined below:

Allowance for Impairment Loss

Where Loans Receivable are outstanding beyond

the normal contractual terms, or where uncertainty
exists over the recoverability of loans receivable, the
likelihood of the recovery cf these assets is assessed by
management. The specific impairment loss is estimated
with reference to the probability of recovery, the cost of
possible enforcement through security ond related costs
and sale proceeds. Any collective provision is estimated
using historical and industry trends.

Estimation of Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The determination of fair values of financial instruments
is based on guoted market prices or dedler price
quotations for financial instruments traded inactive
markets, or by using valuation technigues. Valuation
technigues include giscounted cash flow analysis and
comparisen to similar financial instruments for which a
market observoble price exists.

To the extent possible, models use only observoble data.
Inputs to valuation models such as credit risk, volatilities
and correlations reguire management te make judgements
and estimates. Changes in the assumptions used in these
models and projections of future cash flows could offect
the reperted fair value of finoncial instrurnents.

Estimation of Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities for insurance contracts are
computed using statistical or mathematical methods.
The computations are made by suitably qualified
personngl on the basis of recognised actuarial methods,
with due regard to relevant actuarici principles.

The methodology takes into account the risks and
uncertainties of the particular classes of insurance
business written.

The key factors thot affect the estimation of these
liabilities and related cssets are:

+ discontinuance experience, which affects the Group’s
ability to recover the cost of acquiring new business
over the lives of the controcts

- the cost of providing benefits and administering these
insurance contracts

+ the discount rate applied to calculate the present value
of future benefits.

In addition, factors such as regulation, inflation, interest
rates, taxes, investment market conditions and general
economic conditions affect the level of these licbilities.

Other judgements made by management in the application
of NZ IFRS thet have significant effect on the finoncial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of

miaterial adjustrnents in the next yeor are disclosed, where
applicable, in the relevant notes to the financial statements

The particular accounting policies used in the preparation of
the financial statements are as follows

({ & |

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable thot
eccnomic benefits will flow to the Group and that revenue
con be religbly measured. The principal sources of revenue
are interest revenue, insurance premiums, transaction and
other fees

Interest Revenue and Expense

For all financial instrurments megasured at amortised cost,
interest revenue or expense is recorded ot the effective
interest rote, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the instrument or ¢ sherter period, where
appropriate, te the net corrying amount of the financial
asset or financial iability. The application of the method has
the effect of recognising revenue and expense evenly in

lif

proporticn to the amount outstanding over the expected life

of the financial asset or liability.

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example. prepayment options)
and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. but not future credit losses. The
adjusted carrying ameunt is calculated based on the original
effective interest rate ond the change in carrying amount is
recorded as interest revenue or expense.

Other than for nen-accrual items, ence the recorded value
of the financial asset or group of similar financial ossets hes
been reduced dus to an impdirment loss, interest revenue
continues to be recognised using the original effective
interest rate applied to the new carrying amount.

The Group recognises interest revenue and lending fees on
an accrual basis when the services are rendered using the
effective interest rate method.

Lending Fees

The calculation of the life of Loan Receivables has been
based on contractual data The actudl life of Loan
Receivables is used to apportion loan origination and
associdted direct costs on a straight line basis.

Banking Services Transaction and Other Fees
Commissions or fees which relate to specific transactions
or events are recognised in profit or loss on the Statement
of Comprehensive Income when the service is provided to



the member or customer. When commissions and fees are
charged for services provided over a period, they are taken
to income on an accruals basis as the service is provided.

Insurance Premiums

Premium revenue is recognised from the attachment

dote as soon gs there is a basis on which it can reliably

be estimated. Premium revenue is recognised in profit or
loss on the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the
pericd of the contract in accordance with the pattern of
incidence of risk expeacted under the insurance contract.
Premiurn revenue excludes fire service and earthquake
levies collected on behalf of statutory bodies. The unearned
portion of premium is recognised as an unearned premium
liability on the Statement of Financial Position.

Reinsurance Expense

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised os an expense
that is evenly spread frem the date of attachment of the
risk to the end of the period of the reinsurance contract
over the period of indemnity of the reinsurance contract

Expense Recognition
All expenses are recognised in prefit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive income on an accruals basis.

Foreign Currency Transactions

When a gocd or service is purchased in a foreign currency
the cost is recognised dt the rate of exchange at which the
commitment is settled. All outstanding inveices at year end
are valued at the ruling rate of exchange or ot the rate of
any foreign exchange contract held for settlement of that
liciility.

(b) Vaiu

Financial Instruments

Financial Imstruments are transacted on a commercial
basis to derive an interest yield / cost with the terms
and conditions having due regard to the nature of the
transaction and the risks involved.

Financial Assets
Financial Assets are clossified in one of the following
categories at initial recognition:

« Loans and receivables

+ Fair value through profit or loss
* Held to maturity

- Available-for-sale

Certain categories of these reguire measurement at fair
value. Where guoted market prices do not exist, fair values are
estimated using discounted cash flow models, using methods
and assumptions that are based on market conditions and
risks existing at balance date. Financial instruments are
recognised and accounted for on a settlement date basis.

(i) Loans and Receivables

Assets in this category are measured ot cmortised cost
using the effective interest method. Financial assets
classified as leans and receivables include:

» Cash and Cash Equivalents
+ Accounts Receivable

+ Loans Receivable

« Investments

Loans Receivable cover all forms of lending to customers,
and include residential lending, cammercial lending and
vendor finance. They are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Positien when cash is advanced to the customer.

Loans Receivable are reported net of provisions for
impairment to reflect the estimated recoverable amounts

(ii) Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets backing insurance liabilities are measured
at fair value with movements recognised in profit or loss
on the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Interest is
recognised on an amortised cost basis in profit or loss

on the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value
movements have been calculated taking this inte account.

(i) Held to Maturity Investments

Financial Assets in this category are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. There are currently
no financial assets in this category.

(iv) Available-For-Sale

Avdgiloble-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
The fair value of the assets is based on quoted market prices
and fair value movernents are recognised directly in equity.
Interest is recognised on an amortised cost basis in profit or
loss on the Statement of Cormiprehensive Income.

There are currently no financial assets in this category.

Financial Liabilities

Debt and eguity instruments are classified as either liabilities
or Members Funds in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangerent.

Liabilities are recorded initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Subseduent to initial recognition,

liabilities are measured ot amortised cost with any
difference between the initial recognised amount and the
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss on the
Staterment of Comprehensive Income over the period of
borrowing using the effective interest rate method. Interest
expense is recognised In profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income using the effective interest method.

Deposits Received
Deposits received cover dll forms of deposits and include
transactional and savings accounts, and term deposits



(i) Offsetting Financial Instruments
The Group offsets fingncial assets and financial licbilities

and reports the net balarce in the Stotement of Financial
Position where there is o legally enforceable right to set-off

and there is an intention to settle on a net bdsis or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are contracts whose value
is derived from changes in one or more underlying financial
instruments or indices. The Group does not engage in
troding derivatives for speculative purposes

+ Interest Rate Swaps: The Association enters inte
interest rate swaps to assist Member credit unions
with interest rate risk management. The net fair value
of interest rate swaps receivable from counterparties
is disclosed as Derivative Financial Assets. The net fair
value of interest rate swaps payable to counterparties
is disclosed as Derivative Financial Liabilities

Interest rate swaps are initiclly recognised at fair value

on the date on which @ derivative contract is entered into

and are subseguenitly re-measured to their fair value at
each reporting date. The movermnent in the fair value of
interest rate swops s recegnised in profit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income immediately.

The Group does not undertake any form of hedge
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Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are reviewed
at each balance date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. If any such indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and
provision is made for the difference between the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount.

(i) Loans Receivable
Specific provisions are made for loans receivable which
are considered doubtful and are presented net of the

specific provisions, Specific dilowances gre made against
the carrying amount of loans receivable that are identified
as being impaired based on regular reviews of outstanding
balances, to reduce these loans receivable to their
recoverable amounts.

Collective allowances are maintained to reduce the carrying
amount of portfolics of similar loans receivable to their
estimated recoverable amounts at balance date. These
allowances relate to incurred losses not yet specifically
identified in the portfolic. The expected future cash flows
for the portfolios of similar assets are estimated based on
previous experience and considering the credit rating of the
underlying customers and late payments of interest and
penalties.

Increases in the specific and collective allowances are
recognised in the profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. When a loan is known to be
uncollectible, all the necessary legal procedures have been
completed, and the final loss has been determined, the loan
is written off directly to profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

(ii) Impaired Loans Receivable

Impaired Loans Receivable consist of non-accrual items,
past due assets, assets acquired through enforcement of
security and restructured items

+ Non-accrual items, which are defined as items in
respect of which revenue may ne longer be accrued
aheod of its receipt because reasonable doubt exists

as to the collectability of principal and interest. They
include exposures where contractual payments are
80 or more consecutive days in arredrs and where
security is insufficient to ensure payment.

Past-due assets, which are assets where the
counterparty has fi

led to make a payrment when
contractually due.

+ 90 day past-due assets, which are any assets that
have not been operated by the counterparty within
its key terms for at least S0 daoys and which are not

restructured assets, other impaired gssets, or financial

assets gcquired thr ouu'. enforcement of security.

Financial assets acguired through enforcement of
security. which are ossets acquired through the
enforcement of security or where the Group has
assumed ownership of an asset insettlerment of all or

part of a debt

Restructured items, which are defined as items in
which the eriginal contractual terms have been formally
modified to provide for concessions of interest or
principal for reascns related to the financial difficulties
of the member, the revised terms of the facility are
rot comparable with the terms of new facilities with
comparable risks and the yield on the asset following
restructure is equal to or greater than the Group’s
average cost of funds or @ loss is not otherwise
expected to be incurred.

(ii) Impairment of Assets at amortised cost

An assessment is made at each balance date whether
there is objective evidence that o fingncial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group

of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses

are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impoirment as a result of ohe or more events that occurred
after the Initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of finandial
assets that can be relicbly estimated. Objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes



observable data that comes to the attention of the
directors about the following loss events

+ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor

a breach of controct, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments

.

@ concession granted to the borrower that the lender
would not otherwise consider for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
Registered Banrkruptey or other financiol reorganisation

+ the disgppecronce of an active market for that
financial osset because of financial difficulties; or

abservable data indiceting that there is.a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition

of those assets, cithough the decrease connot yet

be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group; including adverse changes in the payment status
of borrowers in the group.

Firstly an assessment is made whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that

are individually significant, and individually or collectively

for finarcial assets that are not individually significant, If

it is determined that no objective evidence exists for an
individually assessed financial asset. whether significant or
not, the assets gre included in a group of financidl assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually
ossessed for impairment and for which an impgirment loss is
or continues te be recagnised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investrents
carried ot amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of loss s measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amoeunt and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset

is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the Staterment

of Comprehensive Income. If a loan or held-to-rmaturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
far measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, impairment may be measured on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of a collcteralised financial asset reflects the
cash flows that may result from fereclosure less costs for
obtaining and seling collateral, whether or not foreclosure

is probable. For the purposes of a collective evaluation

of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of
the Group's grading process that considers collateral
type, past-due stotus and other relevant factors). Those
characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future

cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of
the debters’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cosh flows in o group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets and
historical loss experience for assets with simitar credit
charaocteristics.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of
assets should reflect and be directionally consistent with
changes in reloted observable data from period to period
(for example, charges in payment status or other factors
indicative of changes in probebility of losses in the group and
their magmtude). The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off to the Statement
of Comiprehensive Income. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined.

If, in a subseguent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtors credit rating),

the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

(iv) Impairment of Assets measured at fair value

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. Any impairment of financial
assets measured ot fair value through profit or loss will

be included as part of the fair value movement for those
dassets, reflected directly in profit or loss on the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

(d) De-recognition of financial assets
A fincncial asset is de-recognised when:

* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either:
- has transferred substantially cll the risks and
rewards of the assets
* has neither transferred nor retains substantiolly
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the assets.

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired.



* The Group retains the right te receive cash flow from
the assets, but has assumed an obligation to pay them
in full without matericl delay to a third party under a
"pass through” arrangement.

When the Group has transferred its right te receive cash
flows from an asset ond has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group's continuing involvernent in the asset.

Investment in subsidiaries is recognised ot the lower of cost
or recoverable value. Any impairment is recognised in profit
or loss on the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Group financial statements consolidate the Association
and the following entities:

- Co-op Insurance NZ (wholly owned subsidiary) — on
insurance company;

- Co-op Services NZ {(wholly owned subsidiary) — a company
providing services to non-mermbers of the Association;

- CU Group Trust the investrment holding trust of the

Association.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries areall entities (ncluding special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power, exposure or r\ghts to
variable returns from its involvernent with the investes and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power

Where subsidiaries have been acguired or sold during the
year, their operating results have been included from the
date control is passed to the Association, or to the dote
control ceases.

Acquisition-related costs are expense S incu 1
Acquisitio loted t ce sed as incurred

Changes in a parent’s ewnership interest in @ subsidiary that
donot result in the parent losing control of the subsidiary
are recorded through eguity to reflect a transaction
amengst shareholders.

The acquisition of any subsidiary is cccounted for using the
acguisition method of accounting. The acquisition method

of accounting involves recognising at acquisition date,
separately from goodwill, the identifiable assets, the lickilities
assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree.
The identifiable assets acguired and licbilities assumed are
measured at their acquisition date fair values

On consolidation, all significant inter-company transactions,
balances and unreclised gains on transactions have been
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
palicies adopted by the Group.

(i) Joint Ventures

Joint Ventures are thase entities over whose gctivities
the Group has joint control, established by contractual
agreement and requiring unanimous consernt for strategic
financial and operating decisions,

Jeintly controlled entities are accounted for by the Group
using the equity method (eguity accounted investees) and
are recognised initiclly ot cost. The consolidated financial
statements include the Group's share of the income and
expenses and equity movements of equity accounted
investees, from the date that significant influence er joint
control commences until the date that significant influence
or joint control ceases. Dividends received from jointly
controlled entities are recorded in profit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive Incorme

Profits and losses resulting from upstreom and downstream
transactions between the Group and its Joint Venture are
recognised in the Group’s financial stgtements only to the
extent of unrelated investor's interests in the Joint Venture

Cash.and Cash Equivalents comprise cash on hand and call

Accounts Receivables are initially recognised at fair value,
and are subseduently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Appropricte allowance is estimated for irrecoverable
amounts which are recognised in profit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

Acguisiticn costs incurred in obtaining insurance contracts
dre deferred and recognised as assets where they can
be reliably measured and where it is probable that they
will give rise to premium revenue that will be recognised

in subseguent reporting periods. Deferred acquisition
costs are amortised systematically in accordance with
the expected pattern of the incidence of risk under the
insurance contracts to which they relate. This pottern of
amortisation corresponds to the earning pattern of the
corresponding premiurm revenue:

es

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined

on a first in, first cut basis, and net redlisable value. Net
reclisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs 1o be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution.




Property, Plant and Eguiprment is carried ot cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

All Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated on a
stroight line basis at rates which will write off their cost less
estimated residual value over their expected useful lives.
Depreciation rates are as follows

Computer Equipment 40%

Office Furniture & Equipment,
Leasehold Improvement Costs

and Motor Vehicles 10 - 36%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
itern of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the scles proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statemenit of
Comprehensive Income

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation
rmethods are reviewed and adjusted If appropriate at each
balance date.

Property, Plant and Eguipment is reviewed for impairment at
least annually and whenever events indicate thot the carrying
value may not be recoverable. An asset's carrying amount

is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if

the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. The recovercble amount is the higher of
the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Intangible Assets comprise Computer Software.

Computer Software is capitalised on the basis of costs
incurred to acguire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their expected lives ona
straight line basis of 40% amortisation.

Lo N “Toinirs
\m) 1AxXC

The Association has not provided for income tax on the

basis it is exempt for tax under Section CW44 (a) of the
Income Tax Act 2007. However other Group entities are
subject to taxation.

Income tax on the net profit for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in

profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

(i) Current Tax

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of
income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the
taxable profit or tax loss for the period. It is calculated
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by reporting date. Current tax for

current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or
asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (er refundable). Tax
assets end liobilities are offset only when the Group has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts,
and intends to settle on a net basis.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is gecounted for using the liobility method in
respect of temporary differences arising from differences
between the carrving amount of assets and ligbilities in the
finoncial statements and the corresponding tax base of
those items

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
toxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable amounts will be available against which deductible
temporary differences or unused tox losses and tax offsets
can be utilised.

However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them
arise from the initicl recognition of assets and licbilities
(other than s a result of a business combination) which
affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit

Deferred tax licbilities ure not recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and dssociates except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with these investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temperary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when

the asset and liability giving rise to them are redlised or
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by reporting date, The
measurement of deferred tax liakilities and assets reflects
the tox consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the reporting date. to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

(iii) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of GST except:

+ When the GST incurred on a purchase of goeds and
services is not recoverable from Inland Revenue in
which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
the acguisition of the assets or as part of the expense
itern as applicable.



- Accounts Receivables and Accounts Payable, which are
stated with the omount of GST included.

The net omount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is included as part of accounts receivable
or accounts payable in the Statement of Financial Position

Cash flows, with the exception of deposit cash flows, are
included in the Statement of Cash Flows on ¢ gross basis.
The GST comperient of cash flows arising from investing and
financing activities which is recoverable from, or paydble to,
the taxation quthority is included as an operating activity.

The policy liabilities of Credit Union Insurance Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group, have been determined in
accordance with Professional Stondard No. 32 & 4 of the
New Zealand Society of Actuaries

Premium that has not been recognised in profit or loss
on the Statement of Comprehensive Income is unearned
premiurm and is recognised in the Staterment of Financial
Pasition as an unearned premium liability.

The adeguacy of the unearned premium liability Is assessed
by considering current estimates of the present value of the
expected future cash flows and a margin for risk relating 1o

future claims arising from motor vehicle insurance contracts

In the event of a deficit the entire deficit is recognised in

profit or loss on the Statement of Comiprehensive Income.

Life Insurance Liabilities are recorded as the undiscounted
accumulated benefits to policyholders except where the
outcome is materially different from the net present value
of future payrments to policyholders,

Motor Vehicle claims liability is measured as the central
estimate of the present value of the expected future
payment for cleims incurred with an odditional risk maorgin to
allow for the inherent uncertainty in the central estimote

Life Insurance claims liagbility and Motor Vehicle Insurance
claims liability are not discounted due to the short term
nature of these claims. Open disabllity claims are discounted
at an assessed risk free rate as the liability may extend for
the duration of the underlying loan.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation, the future sacrifice of benefits is probable. and
the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

Provisions are medsured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
o settle the present obligation at the balance date. If the
effect of the time volue of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects the time value
of money and the risks specific to the lickility. The increase

in the provisions resulting from the poss
recognised as a finance cost

age of time is

When seme or dll of the economic benefits reguired to
settle ¢ provisicn are expected to be recovered from d third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it Is virtually
certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Legses are classified as finance leoses whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ewnership to the lessee. All other lecses are classified as
opergting leases

Operating lease rentals/expenses are recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are derived.

Assets held under finance leases are initiclly recognised gs
ssets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of

&

the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
d in the Statement of Financial Position as a finance

included

lease obligation.

Lease poyments are apporticned between finance charges
and the reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
constant rate of interest on the remaining liability. Finonce
charges are charged directly against income. Finance

lease assets are cmortised on a straight line basis over

ihe estimated useful life of the asset or the |ease term
whichever is shorter.

Present obligations arising under onerous leases are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous legse is
considerad to exist where the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected

to be received under it.

Provision is made for entitlements accruing to employees

in respect of salaries and wages, dnnual leave, long service
leave and sick leave when it is prabable that settlement will be
reguired and they are copable of being measured reliably

Pravisions made in respect of employee entitlements
expected to be settled within 12 menths, are measured ot
their norminal values using the remuneration rate expected
to apply at the time of settiement.

Provisions made in respect of employee entitlements
which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are
measured as the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to reporting date.




Other liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
obliged to make future payments resu\tmg from the
purchase of goods and services

iﬂ"

Other liabilities cre measured at amortised cost. The
amounts are unsecured.

The Stoterment of Cast ve of GST

N Flows is prepared exc

The tollowing are definitions of the terms used in the

Statement of Cash Flows:

+ Cash and Cash Equivalents are considered to be cash
on hand and cail deposits

Investing activities are those relating to the acquisition,

=)
holding and ﬂsnu;ql of property, plant and equipment

and investments. Investmenits can include movements

in related party balonces and securi

ties not falling
within the definition of cash and cash eguivalents

Financing activities are those dctivities which result
in changes in the size, composition and the capital
structure of the Greup. This includes both equity and
debt not falling within the definition of cosh and cash
equivalents.

Operating activities include all transactions dnd other
events that are not investing or financing cctivities

NZ IFRS 8 reguires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reperts about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker in order to allocate resources to the

segment and to assess its performance,

The Group's primary reporting format is business segments.

The Group operates sclely within New Zealand and does not

recognise separate geo

graphical segments.

All accounting policies, except for those affected by the
cdoption of new standards, have been applied on bases
cansistent with prior years.

Amendment to NZ |1AS 32, ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation’ on offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. This amendment clarifies that the right to offset
must not be contingent on a future event. It must also be
legally enforcecble for all counterparties in the normal
course of business as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptey. The amendment also considers

settliement mechanisms. The amendment did not have any

itements of the Grol

effect on the financia

The following standards and amendments to existing

standarc ' published and are mandatory for the

Group's accounting period's beginning on or after 1 July 2015
or later periods, but the Group has not early adopted them

NZ IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) (effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

NZ IFRS 2, 'Financial Instruments’ addresses the

o+

cle ion of financial

assification, measurement and recogr
assets and financial liabllities. The complete version of

NZ IFRS S was issued in September 2014, It replaces the

(‘J

guidance of NZ JAS 39 that relates to the classification and

rmeasurement of financial instruments. NZ IFRS 9 retains but

simplifies the mixed measurement model and
three
assets: arnortised cost, fair value thre ough comprehensive

orimary measurement categories for financia

incorme and fair value through profit and loss. The basis of
classification depends an the entity's business model and

the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial

asset. Investrnents in eguity instrumenits ore required to

oe measured at fair value through profile or > with the

irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income not recycling, There
is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces
the incurred loss impairment medel used in NZ IAS 38. Fer
financial liakllities there were ne changes to classification
and measureme

ept for the recognition of changes
in own credit risk in other comprehensive inccme Tor
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. NZ
IFRS 8 relaxes the reguirements for hedge effectiveness
by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. it

G

reguires an economic relationship between the hedged

ftemn ond hedging instrument and the ‘hedged ratio’ to be
the same as the one management actually use for risk
management purposes. Contemporaneous documentation
is still required but is different to that currently prepared
under NZ IAS 38. The standard is effective for accounting
periods beginning onor after 1 January 2018. Early adoption
is permitted. The company intends to adopt NZ IFRS S on its
effective date and has yet to assess its full impact.

NZ IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with Customers’
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017)

NZ IFRS 15, "Revenue from contracts with customers” deals
with revenue recognition and establishes principles for
reporting useful information to users of financial statements
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cosh flows arising from an entity's contracts
with custormers. Revenue is recognised when ¢ customer






FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
2 INTEREST REVENUE
Other Bond Interest - 279 124 = =
Bank, Money Market Securities, Local Authority and Floating Rate Note Interest 4045 3862 4.045 3862
Other Interest 315 270 315 270
TOTAL INTEREST REVENUE 4,639 4,426 4,360 4,232
3 INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on Deposits " 3438 3605 3497 3BT
Bank Fees and Charges 54 80 64 80
Other Interest ¥ B = T
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 3,509 3,671 3,561 3.737. .
NET INTEREST REVENUE 1130 755 799 495
4 OTHER REVENUE
M_emb_ersh\p Contributions . i 664 708 e 664 708 ¢
Dividends Received = = 125 3_50' :
Management Fees Recelved = = 1108 1108 :
Other Revenue 25 343 341 293
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 879 1,051 2,236 2,457
5 EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and Wages 4310 4027 3855 J858 |
Other Stoff Costs 28 17 19 10
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS 4336 4,044 3.874 3,568




Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
6 OPERATING EXPENSES
Auditors’ Remuneration:
- Audit fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers 87 98 47 58
- Other fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers -
Information System Review 32 - < 32 E.’B.
Taxation 18 27 = o
Other Statutory Returns (5] B = T
Corporate Finance 10 B 10 B
Total Auditors' Remuneration 154 165 89 92
Depreciation:
- Furniture, Fittings, Office Equipment & Vehicles Bl BO B0 59
- Computer Equipment 147 135 134 120
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 475 444 342 =893
Directors' Fees 2p2 225 222 285
Directors' and Governance Expenses 93 125 a3 25
Leasing Charges 268 261 268 2ie
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equinment 66 (10) 66 (7
Other Operating Expenses 2,815 2,766 2358 2,346
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,301 4171 3,632 3,525
7 INSURANCE PRODUCTS
Included in the income and expenditure for the Group are the following underwriting results:

Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
LIFE INSURANCE
Gross Earned Premium 2,044 1830 @ -
Reinsurance Premiums = = = =
Net Earned Premium 2,044 1830 - -
Gross Claims 865 814 = L
Reinsurance Received = = = : e
Net Claims 865 814 = =
Commission 253 224 = -
Underwriting Result : 926 792 = =
Credit Union Rebates 558 484 = -

368 308 = K
OTHER NON-LIFE INSURANCE
Gross Earned Premium 4270 4,200 - &
Reinsurance Premiums 0 S - 5
Net Earned Premium 4,270 4,200 E &
Gross Claims 1841 1735 E s
Reinsurance Received = = = =
Net Claims 1,941 1735 = -
Commission 832 831 = =
Underwriting Result 1397 1574 = e
Credit Union Rebates 752 762 = o o
645 8l2 - 8 25




Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
MOTOR VEHICLE INSURANCE
Gross Earned Premium 4283 4,104 - -

Reinsurance Premiums

(238) (238) = =

Net Earned Premium
Gross Claims

Reinsurance Received

4,047 3,866 - =
2,485 2194 - e

Net Claims

2,485 2194 = £

Commission

479 450

Underwriting Result

1,083 Lece = =

Credit Union Rebates

(88) =

1169 1222

TOTAL INSURANCE

Net Earned Premium prior to Rebates

10,361 9,896 - =

Net Claims

Commissions

5281 4,743 =
1664 1585 =

Underwriting Result

3,406 3,588 - =

Credit Union Rebates

1224 1248 = =

Insurance Claims, Commission and Rebates

8179 7554 - =

Total Underwriting Result after Commission and Rebates

2182 2,342 - B &
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Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 5000 $000
OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY
LIFE INSURANCE
Opening Claims Liability 98 86 < &
Claims Expense 865 814 - e :
Claims Paid (847) (801) = M
Closing Claims Liability uz 28 = =
OTHER NON-LIFE INSURANCE
Opening Claims Liability 1598 16686 =
Claims Expense : 1941 1735 = =
Claims Paid (1L8%91) (1.803) - o e
Closing Claims Liability 1648 1598 = =
MOTOR VEHICLE INSURANCE
Opening Claims Liability 47 505 E
Claims Expense 273 2388 *
Claims Paid (2507) (2,402) 5
Closing Gross Claims Liability 677 = ¥

TOTAL GROSS OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY 2.442 2168 - =




Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
MOTOR VEHICLE EXPECTED RECOVERIES RECEIVABLE
Opening Expected Recoveries 145 234 3 =
Increase In Expected Recoveries 228 184 = =
Actual Third Party Recoveries Received (253) (273) = =
Closing Expected Recoveries 120 145 =5 =
Motor Vehicle Net Claims Liability 557 326 = =
TOTAL NET OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY 2322 2,023 - -

Outstanding claims are reported in the Statement of Financial Position as Outstanding Claims Lidbility and Expected Recoveries

Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
Compoesition of Outstanding Claims Liability
Life insurance
Qutstanding Claims 5 1 = =
IBNR 17 98 - -
Closing Claims Liability uz a9 - =
Other Non-life Insurance
Outstonding Claims 1241 13188 = =
Management Allowance - 85% nz 14 = S
Risk Margin - 10% 150 145 - -
IBNR 140 140 : 7
Closing Claims Liability 1648 1598 = el
Motor Vehicle Insurance
Qutstanding Claims 437 300 = &
Risk Margin - 15% (2014 :15%) 66 45 = T
Indirect Cloims Management - 17.8% (2014 : 17.8%) 89 61 - o S
IBNR 85 85 - i
Closing Gross Claims Liability B77 471 = -
Closing Expected Recoveries (120) (145) = -
Closing Claims Liability 557 326 = =

Total Outstanding Claims Liability . 2.322 2,023 = 3
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SENSITIVITY CALCULATIONS Balance Sensitivity Balance Sensitivity
Qutstanding Claims Liakility 2100 1865
Reopening allowance 10% higher 3
Reopening allowance 10% lower (3)
Claim estimates 10% higher 210
Claim estimates 10% lower (210)
Administration costs 10% higher 20
Adrministration costs 10% lower (20)
IBNR 342 303
Cleim reporting 10% longer 120
Claim reporting 10% quicker 10e)

2,442 2168
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8 IMPAIRMENT

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 5000
Movement in Provisions in respect of:
- Loans Receivable i i - =
- Investments 5 = 5 =
Bad Debts Recovered 28 = 28 -
IMPAIRMENT CREDIT 28 = 28 -
Refer to notes 15 and 16 for further infermation.
9 TAXATION
Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Profit before Taxation 181 1508 1684 1408
Incore Tax at current rate of 28% 507 422 472 384
Exempt Income (472) (331) (472) (394)
Non Deductible Expenses (1) ) = =
Utilisation of Tax Losses (previously not recognised) (18) (88) = 5
TAXATION EXPENSE .22 o = =

The Association through its registration under the Friendly Societies and Credit Union Act 1882 is a non-tox paying entity

Taxation

asses have been recognised to the extent of the deferred tax liability on temparary differences. The additional tax losses have not been

recognise

because there is not sufficient probability of taxable profits in future years to offset such losses. Tax losses are subject to Inland Revenue
assessment in the next tax return and shareholder continuity requirements. Tax losses not recognised are 54,226,217 (51183,341 ct the tox rate of 28%)
(2014 : $4.084,000 (51138,000 at the tax rote of 28%))




Deferred tax assets/(liabilities ) recognised are comprised as follows:

2015 Group
Opening Charged to Closing
Balance Income Balance
$000 $000 $000
Deferred Tax Assets:
Tox Losses Recognised EZ 32 89
Provisions g 5) 4
66 27 93
I;en-'ed Tax Liabilities: .
Intangible Assets = 13) 13
Deferred Acguisition Costs (88) 14) (80)
(66) @7) (93)
2014 Group
Opening Chargedto Closing
Balance Income Balance
$000 $000 $000
Deferred Tax Assets:
Tox Losses Recognised 59 @) &1
Property. Plant and Equipment 2 (23] =
Provisions o B 8
Irmpairment Losses = = =
64 2 66
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Deferred Acquisition Costs (84) (=) (86)
(84) @) (66)




10 BASE CAPITAL NOTES

Group and Association Group and Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
‘000 Units ‘000 Units $000 $000
Issue | 13 17 130 170
lssue |l 13565 13585 13,565 123525
13,578 13,542 13,695 13,695

The Rules of the Association provide for the creation of the Association Business Services Division Trust (the "Business Services Division”), Base Capitall
Notes are those unsecured suberdinated Copital Notes forming the copitel of the Business Services Division. All notes quelify for Dividends os determined

by the Directors

Group and Association

Group and Association

2015 2014 2015 2014
‘000 Units ‘000 Units 5000 $000
Issuel
Balance at 1 July 17 18 170 180
Notes redeemed by transfer to Base Capital Notes || (4) m (40) (10
Balance at 30 June 13 17 130 170

Base Capital Notes Issue | have a face value of $10,000 and are the gualifying Base Copital Notes for membership of the Business Services Division. All

Member Services Division members are entitled to apply for one only Base Capital Note lssue |

Group and Association Group and Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
‘000 Units ‘000 Units $000 $000
Issue Il
Bealahce at 1 Jduly 13525 13515 13525 13515
Notes Issued:
By transfer from Base Capital Notes | 40 10 40 10
Balance at 30 June 13,565 13,525 13,565 13,525

Base Capital Notes Issue Il have o face vaolue of S1

Base Capital Notes Issues constitute unsecured subordinated obligations of the Business Services Division and rank pari passu and without priority or

preference among themselves,

The obligations of the Business Services Division to the Base Capital Noteholders are contained in the Regulations of the Business Services Division




11 ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July A7 (2587) (1.8686) (2.836)
Operating Profit 1en 1508 18684 1408
94 1072) (82) (L2e8)
Base Capital Note Dividends (948) (B838) (248) (638)
Baolance at 30 June (854) A7 (1130) (1.8686)
TOTAL ACCUMULATED LOSSES (854) 1.717) (1,130) (1.866)

The net profit for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2014 have been transferred to Accumulated Losses.

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Member Services Division 1057 1238 1057 1238
Business Services Division 1.1 (2.955) 2187) (3104)
(854) nn 130) (1.8686)

Member Services Division Retained Earnings at 30 June 2015 includes the Retcined Earnings of the New Zealand Credit Union Foundation of $107,000 (30
June 2014 : S104,000). Refer note 34.

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 3000
Cash at Bank 3194 2885 1664 2886
Bank Call Deposits 15616 7804 15616 7.904.
18,810 10,790 17.280 10,790

13 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group uses the following financial derivative assest for economic or risk management purposes:

Interest Rate Swaps: Interest rate swaps are a commitment to exchange one set of cash flows for another, but no exchange of pricipal takes place. The
Goup provides a facllity for credit unions to cover their risk of adverse movements in interest rates, but immediately, and with full coverage, matches that
risk by taking up the equivalent risk in the financial market. At 30 June 2015 there were no interest rate swaps held (30 June 2014 : $Nil)




14 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

I Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
Trade Receivables 1455 1600 1522 1521
Receivable from Subsidicries = = = 150
Future Funded Premiums 2,093 1699 - _.—
3,548 3,298 1532 1671
Insurance Premiums Due 457 444 = =
Provision for Cancellation (aY] E = =
456 444 - =
Total Carrying Amount 4,004 3743 1532 1671

Provision for Cancellation

Collective Provision Against Insurance Premiums Due

Balance at Beginning of the Year - - = =

Movermnent in Provision 1 o] - =

Balance at End of the Year 1 = = =

Past Due Receivables Not Impaired

Trade Receivables 79 86 24 B2

Total Past Due Receivables Not Impaired 79 86 24 62

Aging of Past Due Receivables Not Impaired

Past Due 1-30 days e 40 14 26
Past Due 31-90 days 18 17 - 14
Past Due over 90 days 28 28 10 22
Balance at End of the Year 79 86 24 62
In respect of the Association, Trade Receivables are mainly due from Member credit unions. There is no Provision for Bad Debts (2014 : SNil) and there ‘
has been no write off (2014 : $Nil) in respect of bad end doubtful debts. [

The average credit period is 30 days. Apart from the above, none of the past due receivables have been provided for because past experience indicates
that such armounts are generally recoverable

Future Funded Premiums are the outstanding premiums owed under policies of insurance paid monthly

In respect of the Group, there is a provision for cancellation of $1121 for outstanding insurance premiums relating to policies issued by Co-op Insurance NZ
(2014 : SNif).

Refer also te note 30 for Related Party Disclosures.




15 INVESTMENTS

Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
Bank Deposits 73864 81744 67,882 75,387
Advances to Subsidiaries - - 28 13
Money Market Securities 18419 15831 16,419 15931
Floating Rate Notes - 5,028 - 5028
90,283 102,703 84,323 96,459
Investment Bonds = = 12110 12:337
Investment in Joint Venture accounted for under the eguity method - 248 2 =
Provision for Impairment = B (8,500) (8,500)
i3 248 5,610 5,837
Total Carrying Amount 90,283 102,951 89,933 102,296

Testing for impairment on the investment bends held in the CU Group Trust was undertaken on the value in use basis applied to the individual cash
generating units in which the CU Group Trust invests. A provision for impairment of S6,500,000 (2014 : $6,500,000) is held.

The provision in respect of Co-op Insurance NZ of $6,500,000 (2014 : $8,500,000) was reviewed based on detailed cash flow forecasts for the five years

te 30 June 2020. Key assumptions in this forecast were a low sales growth, loss ratios based on experience and a range of discount rates up to 15%. The
valuation indicated that the asset was fairly valued and the Directors decided to write back SNl (2014 - SNIf) of the previous impairment to fairly value the

investments.

All investments are measured ot amortised cost less impairment, with the exception of Government Stock which is measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Investment in Government Stock was SNl (2014: SNil)

Refer also to note 29 for Unconsolidated Joint Venture and note 30 for Related Party Disclosures.




16 LOANS RECEIVABLE

Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 5000 $S000 $000
Gross Loans Receivable 206 398 208 353

Provision for Credit Impairment (208) (330) (PO8) (330)

Total Carrying Amount % 69 5 89

PROVISION FOR CREDIT IMPAIRMENT

Individually Impaired Loans
Balance at Beginning of the Year = ~ %) et

Amounts Released/Written Off - - = i oo

Balance at End of the Year ~ - - =

COLLECTIVE PROVISION AGAINST LOANS

Balance at Beginning of the Year 330 330 330 3380
Amounts Released/\Written Off (124) = (1e4) =

Balance at End of the Year 206 330 206 330

Total Provision for Credit Impairment 208 330 206 330

AGING OF INDIVIDUALLY IMPAIRED LOANS

Past Due 0-30 days = — = =
Past Due 31-90 days - = = S

Past Due over 90 days ~ — - : -

Balance at End of the Year - = o -

AGING OF PAST DUE BUT NOT INDIVIDUALLY IMPAIRED LOANS

Past Due 0-30 days = < & 1
Past Due 31-90 days . 5 _ )

Past Due over 90 days - E B9 - 563

Balance at End of the Year - 69 - 69

During 2013, the Loan held by the Association at 30 June 2012 armounting to $1189,000 wes, after collections during the year, restructured into a new
agreement with the debtor. As a result of the restructuring, it was recognised that $138,000 was unrecoverable and this was written off. $S800.000 of
loans were taken back from the debtor in part settlement of the debt at estimated recoverable value and a new loan of $355.000 advanced for the
balance owing. Of the $355,000 refinanced, $654.000 was collected by 30 June 2015 (2014 : $556,000). Loans of $28,000 above the provision for
impairment were recovered during 2015 (2014: Nil) and were reported in the Statements of Comprehensive Income:

At 30 June 2015, the Directors were sctisfied that no adjustment in the provisions held were required.

There were no assets acquired through enforcement of security.

17 PREPAYMENTS

Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
Deferred Commission
Deferred Commission Costs 235 228 = )
Commission Costs Paid 1880 1582 = -
Commission Costs Released (1.641) 1575) = e
Closing Deferred Commission Costs 284 235 = =
Other Prepayments 362 285 352 255
7 646 520 352 255

Commission costs represent seller and agency commissions paid to third parties to acquire insurance policies. Commissions are paid upon receipt of
premium and expensed over the life of the policy.




18 INVENTORY

Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000
ATM Machines and Parts 6l a2 61 g2
Promotional and Other ltems 22 34 a2 34

83 126 83 126
The cost of inventeries recognised as an expense during the year wds $477.000 (2014 : $425,000)
19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group Association

2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 5000 $S000 $000
Furniture and Fittings, Office Equipment and Vehicles
Opening Cost at 1 July B60 882 B13 635
Additions B6 2e 66 2
Disposals (38) (44) (38) (44)
Closing Cost at 30 June 688 660 641 613
Opening Accurmulated Depreciation at 1 July 3739 355 342 319
Depreciation Expense Bl 80 B0 59
Disposals (28) (38) (28) (36)
Closing Accumulated Depreciation at 30 June 412 379 374 342
Net Book Value at 30 June 276 28l 267 271
Computer Equipment
Opening Cost at 1 July aip 1362 846 1228
Additions 293 145 265 nz
Disposals (228) (5895) 199) (594)
Closing Cost at 30 June 77 912 9l2 846
Opening Accumulated Depreciation at 1 July 693 853 B51 826
Depreciation Expense 147 185 134 120
Disposals (1s2) (295) (134) (235)
Closing Accumulated Depreciation at 30 June 678 693 651 651
Net Book Value at 30 June 299 219 261 195
Carrying Amount at 30 June 575 500 528 466

There were no material impairment losses in respect of property

. plant and equipment.




20 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Computer Software
Opening Cost at 1 duly 4808 4629 3777 3886
Additions 77 587 610 489
Disposals (B87) (608) (449) (608)
Closing Cost at 30 June 4,898 4,608 3,938 3777
Opening Accumulated Amortisation ot 1 July 3818 3681 3173 3186
Armortisation Expense 475 444 342 233
Disposals (887) {306) (448) (308)
Closing Accumulated Amortisation at 30 June 3,607 3,819 3,066 3173
Net Book Value at 30 June 1291 789 872 604
There were no material impairment losses in respect of computer software
21 DEPOSITS RECEIVED
Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Deposits from Credit Unions 92238 98565 92238 98,565
Depasits from Subsidiaries = = 1158 2477
Deposits from Other Parties 2174 1% 2174 115
94 412 99,680 95,570 102,157
Deposits are accepted on an unsecured basis. Average interest rates, repricing terms and durgtion are as shown in note 27
22 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Trade Payables 1292 1298 1302 1224
Credit Union Rebctes 1224 1248 - o
Accrued Expenses 77 833 870 8Ul
Reinsurance Accruals 19 G = =
GST Payable g1 124 B2 96
3,703 3,610 2234 2121




23 UNEARNED PREMIUM LIABILITY

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Opening Balance 1957 s
Gross Written Premium 10,453
Premium Cancelled (B64)
Earnings Released @584
Closing Unearned Premium Liability 2152 0=

The Appoeinted Actuary has assessed the unexpired risk reserve in respect of in-force policies, comprising the expected claim cost for the period up to
the next renewal date, and the cost of managing those claims and providing other administration services required to manage the pelicies over that time.
The actuary's view is that the unexpired risk reserve in respect of in-force policies is approximately 7.0% (2014 : 8.0%) lower than the unearned premium
provision. The conduct of the liability adeguacy test identified a surplus at the level of 75% likelihood of sufficiency (2014 : 75%). Accordingly there is no

need to recognise any deficiency in the unearned premium provision.

24 PROVISIONS

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000

Ernployee Entitlernents

w0 BEEEEEEN oo BE

25 LEASES

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000

Non Cancellable Operating Lease Payments

Lease liabilities are payable:

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years

Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years

Non Cancellable Operating Lease Receivables

Leases receivable:

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years

Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years

Operating lecses relate to the leasing of office space.



26 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Business Segment Analysis Co-op Insurance NZ
For mc b 3

s, the Group is orgor

customers

Business Services Division
E es Di

financial and bureau s

=

The

a full range of Other Entities

dit unions. Other Entities in

Member Services Division

T m s Din | provides trade
aervices to it dit unions

Business Members Co-op Inter
Group Services Services Insurance Other Entity Ad-

Division Division NZ Entities justments Total
At 30 June 2015 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Revenue from sales with other Segments, excluding interest 1820 5 2 X (1.820) &
Revenue from external custormers 14857 a2 8,709 160 (1.820) 23.868
Total Interest Income 4,312 48 338 125 (184) 4,639
Total Revenue before Interest Expense 20,989 1,010 10,047 285 (3,824) 28,507
Total Interest Expense 3560 1 125 132 (309) 3,508
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax 1865 (181) 193 58 (125) 181
Total Assets 10,563 184 12153 12,035 (18.9586) us59s59
Total Liabilities 98,088 74 6236 12138 (13,418) 103,18
Other Segment ltems:
Acquisition of Property. Plant and Equipment 331 ¥ 1 27 = 359
Acaquisition of Intangible Assets 810 = 367 = = 977
Depreciation Expense - Property, Plant and Equipment 193 % S 2 = 208
Armortisation Expense - Software 342 = 133 - = 475
Bad Debts Recovered (28) 5 = = = (28)
At 30 June 2014
R_evenue from sales with other Segments, excluding interest 1466 = & = (1470) =
Revenue from external customers 14 468 989 10,256 62 (1470) 24,305
Total Interest Income 4534 48 265 125 (546) 4,426
Total Revenue before Interest Expense 20,468 1037 10,525 187 (3.486) 28,731
Total Interest Expense 3738 i 125 151 E32E) 367
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax 1530 122) 466 (16} (350) 1508
Total Assets 118,225 168 11,631 12188 (P0,808) 119,635
Total Liabilities 104,535 80 5783 12.350 (15,071) 107 657
Other Segment ltems:
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 139 = 2 26 = 167
Acquisition of Intangble Assets 489 = 88 ; = & 587
Depreciation Expense - Property, Plant and Equipment 178 1 10 6 = 185
Amortisation Expense - Software 283 = 151 - - 444
Bad Debts Recovered b i 7 S = =

Geographical Segment Analysis
The Group operates selely in New Zecland and therefore no geographical segment information is provided.




27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Risk Management Objectives

Co-op Maney NZ's Finance and Central Banking
departments provide services to the Group entities,
including co-ordinating access to funding, providing banking
facilities, and managing external banking relationships
Services also include advice, assistance and reports to

the Boards of the Group comparnies and to the Co-op
Money NZ Board in relation to financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group. These risks include market risk
(including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. These services are augmerted by specialist
advice to the appropriate Boards from within the entity or
its external advisors, for example in relation to underwriting
risk. Co-op Money NZ reviews the activity of its Central
Banking department by an Asset and Liability Management
Committee which meets bi-monthly. Compliance with
policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal
auditors on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter
inte or trade financial instrurnents for speculative purposes.

Capital Risk Management

The Group mdnoges its capital resources to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to withstand the assessed
business and financial risks appropriate to thelr operation. In

the case of group subsidiaries with an external market focus,

the level of copital investrment is determined by reference
to market norms and the reguirerments of external agencies
such s rating agencies or reguiators. In the case of Co-

cp Money NZ the reqguired level of capital investment is
determined by means of a departmental anclysis applying
a range of methodologies appropriote to the risk profile

of the key operations. These include but are not limited to
the minimum capital adeguocy measures for New Zealond
non-biank deposit takers. In the case of Co-op Insurance

NZ, the reguired level of capital investment is determined by
adding a margin to the minimum selvency capital amount
as measured by the Reserve Bark of New Zealand's life and
non-lite solvency standards. The Group meets its objectives
for managing capital by formally reviewing its available
capital in relation to its risks at least once per annum or
more frequently if required.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

During the year the Group may commit to foreign exchange
contracts to reduce risk involved in the purchasing of goods
or services in foreign currencies. At 30 June 2015, the Group
had foreign exchange contracts to cover purchase orders
ond invoices due of $575,000 (2014 ; SNil). The fair value at
30 June 2015 was immaterial.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss to Co-op Money NZ arising
from adverse changes in interest rates. This exposure in
respect of on-Balance Sheet Assets and Liabilities depends
on the degree of mismatch between the volue of interest
sensitive assets and liabilities that are repricing, where
repricing refers to the event when the interest rate attached
to an d@sset or liability is reset. Co-op Money NZ controls

its exposure to interest rate risk by actively managing this
mismatch within Beard approved policy.

interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non derivative instruments at balance date. For floating
rate licbilities, the analysis is prepered assuming the amount
of liability Gutstond:ng at balance date weos outstanding

for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change In interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and
all other variagbles were held constant, the Group's profit
after tax and eguity for the year ended 30 June 2015 would
increase/decrease by S102,108 (2014 : increase/decrease
by S122.370).

If interest rates had been 100 basis peints higher/lower

and all other variables were held constant, Co-op Money
NZ's profit after tax and equity for the year ended 30 June
2015 would increase/decrease by $75,526 (2014 : increase/
decrease by $97130)

Interest Rate Repricing

The following tables detdil the Group's and Association's
interest rate repricing profile:



Average Non
Group Interest Lessthan 3 months [nterest Group
Rate 3months  tolyear l-2years 2-5years Styears Sensitive Total
At 30 June 2015 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Cash and Cash Ecuivalents 3.41% 18810 = - - - - 18,810
Accounts Receivable & = = = 5 = 4004 4,004
Investments 4.01% 76486 12757 = = = 90,283
Loans Receivable = = = = = =
Naon-current Deposit - = = = S = 147 147
95,296 18787 S = = 4151 13,244
Liabilities
Deposits Received 350% 85,885 BEE7 = 5 & 94,412
Accounts Payable & = = = = = 3,703 3,703
85,885 8527 = = - 3703 88115
?;:gll::::: grset Interest Sensitivity Gap g.4n 5,270 5 " g 448 15129
Association
Assets
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 3.36% 17,280 = = = e = 17,280
Accounts Receivable - = = = = B 1532 1532
Investrments 3.76% 71,786 13,787 - = o 4,360 89,933
Loans Receivable = = = = = = =
Non-current Deposit - = - - - - 147 147
89,066 13787 - = o 6.039 108,892
LIABILITIES
Deposits Received 3.48% 87043 8527 - = G 85,570
Accounts Payable = = 2 i = = 2234 2,234
87043 8527 = = . 2.234 97,804
On Balance Sheet Interest Sensitivity Gap 2,023 5.260 I < - 3,805 1.088

-30 June 2015




Average Non
Group Interest Lessthan 3 months Interest Group
Rate 3months  tolyear 1-2years 2-5years Bt+years  Sensitive Total
At 30 June 2014 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Investments

Loans Receivable

Non-current Deposit

Liabilities

Deposits Received

Accounts Payable

On Balance Sheet Interest Sensitivity Gap
=30 June 2014

Association

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Investments

Loans Receivable

Non-current Deposit

LIABILITIES

Deposits Received

Accounts Payable

On Balance Sheet Interest Sensitivity Gap
-30 June 2014

Co-op Money NZ offers an interest rate swap facllity to Credit Unions. It is Co-op Money NZ's policy to economically hedge this risk as it arises by entering

into back to bock matching transactions with Bank counterparties. There were no transactions outstanding (2014 : Nil)
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G Lessthan 3 months Group

P Note 3months  tolyear 1-2years 2-5years S+years Total
2015 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Investments

Loans Receivable
Nen-current Deposit

Future Interest Receivable

Total Financial Assets

Liabilities

Depuosits Received
Accounts Payable

Future Interest Payable
Unearned Premiurm Liability

Qutstonding Claims Liability

Total Financial Liabilities

Net Financial Assets

Unrecognised Commitments

Net Liquidity Gap at 30 June 2015

2014

Assets

Cash ond Cash Eguivalents

Accounts Receivable
Investments

Loans Receivable
Non-current Deposit

Future Interest Receivable

Total Financial Assets

Liabilities

Deposits Received
Accounts Payable

Future Interest Payable
Unearned Premium Liability

Qutstanding Claims Liability

Total Financial Liabilities

Net Financial Assets

Unrecognised Commitments

Net Liquidity Gap at 30 June 2014




NesaEiatan Lessthan 3 months Group
Note 3months  tolyear l1-2years 2-Syears S+years Total
2015 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 17,280 s = = > 17,280
Accounts Recelvable 1532 = = * = 1532
Investments 76136 13,797 = = = 89,933
Loans Receivable = = = = = -
Non-current Deposit = 74 = = 73 147
Future Interest Receivable 392 263 = - = 655
Total Financial Assets 95340 14134 S - 73 109,547
Liabilities
Deposits Received 87043 8587 - - - 95,570
Accounts Payable 2234 = = 7 & 2,234
Future Interest Payable 303 139 = B = 442
Total Financial Liabilities 89580 8,666 = = = 98,246
Net Financial Assets 5,760 5468 = = 73 11,301
Unrecognised Commitments 3l (B,0S1) = = = = (6,051
Net Liquidity Gap at 30 June 2015 (291) 5468 = - 73 5,250
2014
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,780 = = = = 10,780
Accounts Receivable LE71 = A = = 1671
Investrmerits 30662 11634 # = = 102,296
Loans Receivable 5 68 3 b % 69
Non-current Deposit = = 147 = = 147
Future Interest Receivable 499 31 = = E 810
Total Financial Assets l0z822 12,014 147 = = 115,783
Liabilities
Deposits Received 95,249 5908 = - - 102,157
Accounts Payable 2121 = &= = = 2121
Future Interest Payable 355 83 - = = 444
Total Financial Liabilities 7 b 8,987 = = = 104,722
Net Financial Assets 5897 5017 147 - = 11,061
Unrecognised Commitrnents 31 (&218) = & = = (6.2186)
Net Liquidity Gap at 30 June 2014 (319) 5,017 147 - = 4,845
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Financial Instruments by Category Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$oo00 $000 $000 $000
Financial Assets ot Fair Value through the profit or loss
Investments E = = =
Derivative Financial Assets - = -~ =
Total Assets at Fair Value through the profit or loss = = = =
Loans and Receivables
Cash and Cash equivalents 18,810 10,790 17,280
Accounts Receivable 1912 1897 1532 B7: _:_
Loans Receivable - B89 - 895?
Investments 90,283 102,851 89,833 IGE;EQE-Z_
Total Loans and Receivables 11.005 18707 108.745 14826
Total Financial Assets 111,005 115,707 108,745 14826
Other Financial Licbilities at Amortised Cost
Depasits Received 94,412 - 99880 95570 108157
Accounts Payable 1814 1708

Total Other Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

3203 - 3088
97615 102,779

97,384

103865

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through the profit or loss

Derivative Financicl Liakilities

Total Liabilities at Fair Value through the profit or loss

Total Financial Liabilities

97,615 102,779

97,384

103,865




28 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries contrelled at 30 June

Group and Association

Name Percentage Holding at Principal Activities i
Date
Balance Date
2015 2014
Parent Entity
Business Services Division Trust of Co-op Money NZ
CU Securities Limited as Trustee of the CU Group Trust 100% 100% Corporate Trustee 30 June

Subsidiaries of CU Securities Limited

Provisio of services t
FACTS Limited (now trading as Co-op Services NZ) 100% R e ane e 30 June
non Members I

Credit Union Insurance Limited (now trading as Co-op Insurance NZ) 100% 100%  Insurance Underwriter 30 June

NZCU Finance Limited 100% 100% Non Trading 20 June
Credit Union Services Limited 100% 100% Non Trading 30 June
CUI Limited 100% 100% Non Trading 30 June
Kiwi Credit Limited 100% 100% Non Trading 30 June
Credit Union New Zealand Limited 100% 100% Non Trading 30 June

All subsidiaries of the Parent and Group are incorporated in New Zealond and their place of business is Level 3 25 Teed Street, Newmarket, Auckland
There are no significant restrictions on any of the subsidicries

29 UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURE

Group and Association

Name Percentage Holding at Principal Activities Bg!:::e
Balance Date
2015 2014
Joint ¥*_,scure
NZ Bureau Limited C% 50% Computer Bureau 3} March

NZ Bureau was dissolved by the shareholders with effect from 30 November 2014 and was struck off from the Registrar of Company on 28 July 2015. It
was incorporated in New Zealand and operated from Level 3 25 Teed Street, Newmarket, Auckland.

The Group had 50% non-controlling interest in a joint venture, NZ Bureau Limited. The company operated as a computer bureau supplying the hardware
and infrastructure that the Group was reliant on for all its operations. The operational risk was minimised by through the use of the server warehouse
providers and full disaster recovery facilities.

The joint venture was adequately capitalised and was self funding from the services provided to the joint venture partners. The Group had no obligations
or commitrments to assume any financial risks independent of the joint venture partner.

The shareholders of NZ Bureau Limited agreed to the dissolution of the Joint Venture and it ceased trading on 30 November 2014.The Group received |
$328,528 in cash on dissclution of the joint venture, which included a dividend on dissolution of $62,242. |




30 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The parent entity in the consolidoted entity is the New
Zedaland Association of Credit Unions (Co-op Money NZ).

Details of the equity interests held in subsidiaries and the
joint venture are disclosed in notes 27 and 28. Co-op Money
NZ does not hold any other equity interests

Co-op Meney NZ provides funding to subsidiaries and the
joint venture by way of purchasing investment bonds in CU
Group Trust which in turn purchases the securities issued by
them. The bonds are unsecured but if the issuer is unable
to repay the full amount owing at repayment date then
Co-op Meney NZ is granted a charge over all present and
At 30 June 2015 Co-
op Money NZ held investment bonds which are valued at
$5 610,000 (2014: $5.837,000).

after acquired assets of the issuer

At 30 June 2015 interest of SNil (2014 : &
Co-op Money NZ in respect of these bonds:

) was payable to

c~-op Maney NZ provides unsecured overdraft facilities
to subsidiaries and the joint venture. At 30 June 2015
overdraft faciities available to subsidiaries of S120,000
(2014: subsidiaries $120,000 and joint venture SB0.000).
The total drown down under these facllities at 30 June 2015
was S22,000 to subsidiaries (2014: subsidiaries S113,000
and joint venture SNil). Interest was charged monthly on the
outstanding balances during the year at rates of between
S5.65% and 8.75% (2014 : between 565% and 875%)

Co-op Money NZ maintairis bank accounts and short

term deposit facilities for subsidiaries. All deposits are
unsecured. At 30 June 2015 funds placed with Co-op
Money NZ by subsidiaries S1,158,000 (2014: $2,477,000).
Interest is credited monthly on the cutstanding balances at
commercial interest rates.

During the year:
Co-op Money NZ charged interest and facility fees on the
of SI32.000 (P014:

investment bonds and overdraft fadlities

$132,000) to the subsidiaries.

Co-op Money NZ paid interest of $55,000 to the
subsidiaries (2014 : $71.000)

Co-op Money NZ charged fees to
1,655,000 and the io‘r“'r venture of

ubsidiaries 51,470,
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“o-op Money NZ was charged fees by the subsidiaries of
$5.000 and the joint venture of $413,000 (2014: subsidiaries

$4.000 and jeint venture $835.000)

Fixed Assets valued were purchased by Co-op Money
NZ from the subsidiaries at SNil (2014 : SNil) and the joint
venture at S155,000 (2014: $S264,000).

Fixed Assets volued were sold to subsidiaries of 523,000
(2014: SNil} and joint venture at SNil (2014: $13,000).

Ce-op Money NZ received S215,767 in settlement of

its investment bonds from CU Securities Limited. The
settlement was in respect of the dissolution of NZ Bureau
Limited. CU Securities Limited receved S 329 528 fram the
disselution of NZ Bureau Limited, which included a dividend
on dissclution of S62,242 and share of profits accrued using
the eguity method of S18.260

At the year end:
Co-op Money NZ was owed $4,000 (2014: SNil) by the
subsidiaries and by the joint venture SNil (2014, $83,000).

Co-op Money NZ owed $S170.000 (2014: $150,000) to the
subsidiaries and to the joint venture SNil (2014 : S17,000).

The Directors and staff of the Group may insure with Co-op
Insurance N

r

™~

The compensation of the Directors and executives, being the key management personnel of the entity, is set out below

Financial Instruments by Category Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014

$000 $000 $000 $000

Short Terrm Employee Benefits

1292 1282

There were no other payments made to Key Management Personnel,




31 COMMITMENTS

Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000 $000
Undrawn advances under credit facilities 5106 B166 5.204 6173
Capital expenditure 1129 158 847 4
6,235 6.324 6,051 6,216
32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are no material contingent liabilities for year ended 30 June 2015 (2014 : Nil).
33 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of Net Profit After Tax to Net Operating Cash Flows Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$000 $000 So00 $000
Profit after Tax 1811 1508 1684 1408
Adjustments to reconcile operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities
Add/(less) non cash items:
Depreciation 208 BT 194 178
Arnortisation 475 444 342 293
Loss/(Gain) on Dispasal of Property, Plant & Equipment 66 (10) 513} (7
749 628 802 485
Add/(less) movernent in Working Capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory 43 (24) 43 24)
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable (261) (242) 139 (18)
Der ease in Loans Receivable 69 408 B9 408
Increase in Prepayrents 126) 22) (97) (8)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 93 42 3 {1.012)
(Decrease)/Increase in Unearned Premium Liability 195 29 % -
{Decrease)/Increase in Provisions 22 30 41 8
Increase in Outstanding Claims Liobility 274 - - =
309 221 308 (644)
Add/(less) items classified as Investing Activities
Non Cash movement in Investrments 200 35 215 52
Add items included within Financing Activities:
Non Cash movement in Deposits Received ) (S7) 125 (87 125
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 2,972 2,518 2,712 1,406

Cash receipts and payments from Deposits Received have been netted in the Statement of Cash Flows as the cash flows reflect the activities of the
Group'’s and Co-op Money NZ's customer, rather than those of the Group and Co-op Maney NZ. |




34 NEW ZEALAND CREDIT UNION FOUNDATION

s Division of the A

ociation with the ob re of promoting and a:

ciction tablishe

ting in the development of Credit Uni

yundation. The Fo

rsuant to the Rule

s both in New Zealand and

overseas. It is administered by a Board of up to five Foundation Managers eppointed by the Board of Co-op Money NZ
Group Association
2015 2014 2015 2014
$S000 $S000 $S000 $000
Current Assets
Cash 107 104 107 104
NET ASSETS 107 104 107 104
Included in the financial statements are the following income and expenses relating to the New Zealand Credit Union Foundation
Donations, Interest and Grants received 7 43 7 43
Grants paid (5) 43) (5) 43)
OPERATING SURPLUS/(LOSS) 2 - 2 =
35 MEMBER SERVICES DIVISION OPERATING LOSS
2015 2014
$000 $000
New Zealand Credit Union Foundation @) =
MSD Operations (179) 123y
TOTAL (181) @123)

36 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Directors on 21 August 2015 declared a final dividend on Base Capital Notes of $4439.870 payable on 30 September 2015,



Claire Matthews - Chair

(from August 2015)

Deputy Chair (from September 2014)
Elected to the Board in September 2013
Director, Co-op Insurance NZ

B Other responsiblities:
M Member. Audit & Risk Committee
| Trustee, Co-op Money NZ

Peter Taylor - Deputy Chair

(from August 2015)

Elected to the Board in September 2014
Director. Co-op Insurance NZ

3 3 Simon Scott - Director

¥ Chair (Septernber 2011 - August 2015)
Elected to the Board in September 2009
Director, Co-op Insurance NZ

Qther responsibil 2
Director, CU Securities Limited

Directors Fees - For Year Ending 2015

Bruce Bleakley - Director
Elected to the Board in September 2014
Director. Co-op Insurance NZ

Other responsibilities.
Trustee. Co-op Money NZ

Graham Clouston - Director
Elected to the Board in September 2009
Director, Ce-op Insurance NZ

Other responsibilities:
Trustee. Co-op Money NZ
Member, Audit & Risk Committee

Rob Nicholls - Independent Director
Director, Credit Unien Insurance Limited

Orher responsibilities
Chair, Audit & Risk Cormnmi
Director, CU Securities Limited

Role As at 30 June 2015 Director Fees
S Scott Director Current $54,921
Chair
C Matthews Director Current $32670
Deputy Chair
M Blair Director Until September 2014 $8,438
Deputy Chair
R Nicholls Director Current £34,358
Audit & Risk Chair
B Bleakley Director Current $20,736
A B R Comm
P Taylor Director Current $20,736
G Clouston Directar Current $27,.486
A& R Comm
C Andersen Director Until February 2015 S15.966
R Anderson Director Urtil September 2014 $B.750
TOTAL $222.060
Co-op Money NZ & Co-op Insurance NZ Board Meetings and Audit & Risk Committee Meetings
S Scott CMatthews M Blair B Bleakley G Clouston R Nicholls P Taylor HLynch
Co-op Money NZ Board Meetings na um 3/3 8/8 1/ nm 8/8 N/A
Co-op Insurance NZ Board Meetings m nA 3/3 a8/8 nm 11 8/8 10m
Audit & Risk Committee Meetings = B/6 = B/6 B6/8 a N/A







